
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD IAU, 29 MEDI 2022 
 
 
AT:  YR AELOD O’R CABINET  DROS ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, 
DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH  
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU RHITH 
CYFARFOD O’R YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADFYWIO, 
HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH A GYNHELIR AM 
10.00 YB, AR DYDD IAU, 6ED HYDREF, 2022 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA 
ATODEDIG. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Martin S. Davies 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224059 
E-bost: MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
 

 

 
2. COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 21AIN GORFFENNAF 2022. 

 
3 - 4 

 
3. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU 

CANLYNOL:GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR AR CRONFA BUDD 
CYMUNEDOL MYNYDD Y BETWS 

 

5 - 52 

 
4. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI 
 

 

 WEDI YSTYRIED HOLL AMGYLCHIADAU'R ACHOS AC WEDI YNNAL 
PRAWF BUDD Y CYHOEDD GALL YR AELOD O'R CABINET 
WEITHREDOL FARNU NAD YW'R EITEM CANLYNOL I'W GYHOEDDI 
AM EI FOD YN CYNNWYS GWYBODAETH EITHRIEDIG FEL Y'I 
DIFFINNIR YM MHARAGRAFF 14 O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 12A I DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I NEWIDIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) 
(CYMRU) 2007. 
 

 

 
5. BENTHYCIAD CANOL TREF 

 
53 - 62 

 
 
 
 
Sylwer: - Nid oes hawl gan y wasg a'r cyhoedd fynychu'r cyfarfod. Bydd y cofnod penderfyniad yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi fel arfer o fewn 3 diwrnod gwaith. 
 



 

 
 

YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT 
A THWRISTIAETH 

 
 Dydd Iau, 21 Gorffennaf 2022 

 
YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd: G.H. John (Aelod o’r Cabinet) 
 
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol: 
M. Bull, Rheolwr Rhanbarthol - Datblygu Economaidd 
J. Owens, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Swyddfa Yr Aelod Cabinet, Neuadd Y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP. - 10.00  - 10.20 yb 
 
1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol. 
 

2. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y CYFARFOD 
PENDERFYNIADAU ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 17 
MAWRTH 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnod penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 
17 Mawrth 2022, gan ei fod yn gywir. 
 

3. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI 
 
PENDERFYNWYD yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i diwygiwyd 
gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) 
(Cymru) 2007, na fyddai’r eitemau canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod yr 
adroddiadau'n cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym 
Mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i’r Ddeddf. 
 

4. CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO MASNACHOL TRAWSNEWIDIOL SIR 
GAERFYRDDIN 
 
Yn dilyn cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd, PENDERFYNWYD yn unol â'r Ddeddf 
y cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod 3 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion ariannol 
neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod oedd yn 
meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i'r 
Ddeddf). 
  
Yr oedd y prawf budd y cyhoedd o ran y mater hwn yn ymwneud â'r ffaith 
fod yr adroddiad yn cynnwys gwybodaeth fanwl am faterion a dyheadau 
busnes ac ariannol yr ymgeisydd. Yn yr achos hwn, yr oedd y budd i'r 
cyhoedd o ran cadw cyfrinachedd yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran 
tryloywder ac atebolrwydd, gan y byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth yn debygol o 
roi'r unigolion a'r busnes a nodir yn yr adroddiad o dan anfantais annheg 
mewn perthynas â'u cystadleuwyr masnachol. 
 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  2



 

 
 

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Rhanbarthol – Datblygu Economaidd fod cynnig grant 
blaenorol a gymeradwywyd ar 17 Chwefror 2022 [gweler cofnod 6] wedi cael ei 
dynnu'n ôl gan Lywodraeth Cymru ers hynny yn dilyn oedi o ran y cynllun 
arfaethedig.   
 
Adolygodd yr Aelod Cabinet y newidiadau a wnaed yn y cwmni fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd ac ystyriodd gais am £750,000.00 o'r Gronfa Datblygu 
Eiddo Masnachol ar gyfer Trawsnewid - Sir Gaerfyrddin i United Petfood UK Ltd (a 
oedd yn masnachu gynt fel Cambrian Pet Foods Ltd).  
 
PENDERFYNWYD rhoi grant o £750,000.00 i United Petfood UK Ltd o'r 
Gronfa Datblygu Eiddo Masnachol ar gyfer Trawsnewid - Sir Gaerfyrddin yn 
amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau arferol ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn yr 
adroddiad. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________   __________________ 
AELOD O’R CABINET     DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 4



 

 
CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD Y CABINET AR GYFER 

ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH 
06/10/2022 

Aelod y Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
Cynghorydd Gareth John Cyfarfod Penderfyniadau Aelod Cabinet –  

Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
 

CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: 
GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR AR CRONFA BUDD CYMUNEDOL MYNYDD Y BETWS 

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 
Gronfa Cyllid a Dargedir - Atodiad 1 
2 Gais -  Cyfanswm gwerth = £38,470.35 
 
Cronfa Budd Cymunedol Mynydd y Betws – Atodiad 2 
8 Gais -  Cyfanswm gwerth = £84,983.87 
 
                                
Cyfanswm nifer y ceisiadau =   10           Cyfanswm eu gwerth = £123,454.22 
 
 
Rhesymau:  
Datblygu Cymunedau Cynaliadwy yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Helen L Morgan 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Caroline Owen 
Jayne Pritchard 

Swydd: 
Rheolwr Datblygu Adfywio a 
Pholisi 
 
 
Swyddog Biwro 
Cydlynydd 

Rhif Ffôn: 01267 242367 
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
Rhif Ffôn: 01269 590216 
CAOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 
JPritchard@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any):None 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):N/A 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3

mailto:CAOwen@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JPritchard@sirgar.gov.uk


 

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting 
 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 6



 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR REGENERATION, LEISURE, 
CULTURE & TOURISM 

6th October 2022 
 

Financial Assistance from the following grant funds:  
Targeted Finance Fund & Mynydd Y Betws Community Benefit Fund 

 
To approve the following: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED: 
 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
2 Applications – Total Value = £38,470.35 
 
Mynydd Y Betws Community Benefit Fund – Annex 2 
8 Applications – Total Value = £84,983.87 
 
Total Number of Applications - 10     Total Value = £123,454.22 
 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED  YES 

 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
Signed:     Helen L Morgan                                         Development Manager Regeneration & Policy                                           
Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  NONE  NONE NONE   NONE  NONE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 7



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                          Development Manager Regeneration & Policy 

1.Local Member(s) As per individual report 
2.Community / Town Council   As per individual report 
3.Relevant Partners   As per individual report 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations As per individual report 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

 
Targeted Finance Fund 
 
 
Mynydd y Betws 
Community Benefit Fund 
 
 

 
TFF-22-01 
TFF-22-02 
 
MYB-22-01 
MYB-22-02 
MYB-22-03 
MYB-22-04 
MYB-22-05 
MYB-22-06 
MYB-22-07 
MYB-22-08 
 

 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 
 
 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 8



 
 

 
Annex 1 

 
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism 

 
Targeted Finance Fund  

2022-2023 
Report Author: Jayne Pritchard 

JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

 
Budget Available - £126,566.33 

 
Full Report Value: £38,470.35 

 
 

1 of 2 
 

Application Reference: TFF-22-02 
 
 

Project Title  
Angor - Cancer & Life-Limiting Illness Support - Project Development 

 
Applicant Angor  

Ward Countywide 
Key Account 
Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client they 
must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the following 
3 categories:  

• Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be sustainable 
and create employment  

• Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs  
• Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 

communities  
 

Project 
Description 

The concept for Angor started over 15 years ago when it became apparent that 
there is a real need for a support service in Carmarthenshire for individuals who 
have been diagnosed with cancer or a life-altering diagnosis. 
 
Angor will offer practical, financial, legal, social, and emotional support to people 
who have been diagnosed with cancer or a life-limiting illness. Angor will practice 
in an environment that is welcoming, informal and non-institutional, enabling 
participants to connect with others to form new support networks. Angor will meet 
and signpost individuals and discuss the support available, as well as providing 
educational opportunities which encourage all participants to be proactive in their 
recovery and their future objectives. 
 
Funding is required to recruit a self-employed individual with a proven track 
record in several key areas i.e., community development, project management, 
community consultation, marketing and fundraising.  
 
Angor wishes to employ an individual for 25 hours per week over the next 12 
months to support the Trustees in coordinating key elements of the project 
including: 

• Developing Angor’s business model  

Tudalen 9

mailto:JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

• Engaging with service providers and support groups 
• Developing and writing funding bids in line with project development  
• Developing collaborative working with key associates and partner 

organisations  
• Maintaining the Angor brand across various marketing and information 

mediums (e.g., leaflets, newsletters, website and social media) 
• Undertaking comprehensive community engagement/outreach work 
• Planning donation, fundraising campaigns and events 

 
Angor will be actively engaged in education, research and development so that 
strategies facilitating treatment plans will be evidence-based and robust. 
 
Angor will provide a unique service in Carmarthenshire. Current models of 
follow-up in cancer care and life limiting illnesses are not meeting all needs. 
Angor aims to facilitate ‘wellness’ providing a pathway from a clinical setting, 
through to and back to the community. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education - 40 
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 30 
• Number of community groups/organisations assisted - 10 
• Number of social enterprises created - 0 
• Number of jobs created – 1 
• Number of jobs safeguarded - 0 
• Public and private leverage funding - £4,617.59 
 
Other outputs: 
• Pilot Hub model - 10 
• Fundraising Events – 10 
• Increased turnover / profitability - £20,000 
• Additional job creation within 12/18 months  
 

Total Project Cost 
 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
Match funding 

£23,087.94 
 (gross) 

 
Nil 

 
£23,087.94 

 
Coordinator salary - £18,087.94 

Office costs/Travel and Subsistence/Training - £5,000.00 
 

Nil 
 
 

£18,470.35 – (80%) 
  
 

£4,617.59 – secured – own funds 
 

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

Consultation and discussions with: 
• Simon Davies – CCC Countywide Health Fitness & Dry side Activity 
• Llanelli Town Council  
• Pharmacies 
• GP Practices 
• Macmillan Cancer Support 

Tudalen 10



 
 

• Breast Care Centre, Prince Phillip Hospital 
• Maggie’s Centre, Swansea 
• Sharon Burford – CCC Project Manager 
• CAVS 
• Ten Towns Market Town Officers 
• Menter Cwm Gwendraeth Elli 
• Links 
• Patients and their families 
• County Councillor Louvain Roberts  
• County Councillor Sean Rees  

 
Evidence of Need / 

Community 
Engagement 

People who have been diagnosed with cancer or a life-limiting illness mention 
the gap that exists between the diagnosis and the support needed to move on 
with life. 
 
Angor believes: 

• The impact of cancer or a life-limiting illness is not just physical, a 
holistic approach is needed for recovery 

• Recovery is assisted by attending to the needs of the whole person, 
mind, body, spirit and emotions 

• Emotional & practical support should be freely available to people who 
have been diagnosed with cancer or a life-limiting disease 

 
What is different about Angor? 
No other organisation in Carmarthenshire currently provides this signposting 
bespoke user-led holistic wellbeing service where the emphasis is on 
empowering the user to become proactive in their rehabilitation through 
education and support. There is a clear gap in provision which they intend to 
address. They will work with established organisations to signpost and support. 
 
The need for support for people with cancer or a life limiting illness has never 
been greater. According to figures published by Macmillan, there are over 
160,000 people living with cancer in Wales alone. As treatments have 
improved, cancer is now often for many a “chronic condition”. A Welsh 
Government survey in 2020 found that 35% of adults stated that they were 
living with a life-limiting illness. 
 
Once established, individuals will be able to access their new centre during 
office hours for advice and a chance to sign-up to a programme of support. 
Various activities offered will include mindfulness, cancer massage, reflexology, 
art therapy, relaxation classes, wig and hair advice, these will be developed as 
the programmes evolve. Other services such as financial, legal and probate 
advice will also available. These examples are not exhaustive, and wherever 
possible Angor will aim to respond flexibly to the range of needs, as and when 
they arise. The plan is that Angor will evolve and adapt to the identified needs 
of the client. 
 
Recently released figures from Public Health Wales identify an increasing 
number of people living with chronic liver, cardiovascular, and neurological 
diseases, especially in Carmarthenshire.  If the number of people diagnosed 
with a life-limiting illness is added to the cohort of people living with cancer, the 
need for a service such as Angor is evident. 
 
The Trustees have engaged with Maggie’s in Swansea, they fully recognise the 
need for Angor’s services to the west of their operation. There is no duplication. 
Patients and their families deserve key support services on their doorstep.  
 

Tudalen 11



 
 

In March 2022, Angor conducted a survey of stakeholders in Carmarthenshire 
for their views on support following a cancer or life-limiting illness diagnosis. 
Surveys were distributed across the county and made available at numerous 
Doctors Surgeries and Pharmacies.  
 
Geographical areas included Ammanford, Burry Port, Carmarthen, Crosshands, 
Garnant, Glanamman, Kidwelly, Laugharne, Llandeilo, Llandovery, Llanelli, 
Llanybydder, Pontyberem, Newcastle Emlyn, St Clears, Tumble, Trimsaran and 
Whitland. 
 
Respondents felt that a service such as Angor was needed. Responses 
mentioned “a need for support”, “holistic therapy”, “networking with others”, 
“Guidance”. Angor will aim to meet these needs. 
 

Contributing to 
key Strategies 

Angor is strategically important to the local economy, has growth plans in line 
with the Southwest Wales Economic Regeneration Strategy and Regional 
Learning Partnership Delivery Plan namely: 

• Creation of jobs or safeguarding 
• Increasing turnover and/or profitability 
• Enterprise creation/innovative new project ideas 
• Skills, training and volunteering opportunities 
• Ability to lever funding 
• Creation of floor space 

 
Angor aims to addresses many key priorities of local, regional and national 
strategies: 

• Carmarthenshire County Council Corporate strategy 2018-2023 
• Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24  
• Equality Act 2010 
• Carmarthenshire County Council Wellbeing Plan 2018 -2023 
• Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 2013-2030 
• Social Services Well-being Act 
• Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
• Health and Social Care Strategy 
• Social Care and Health: Older People's Strategy 2015-2025 
• Cancer Research Strategy for Wales July 2022 
• Carmarthenshire’s Economic Recovery Plan 
• Welsh Language Standards (Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011) 

 
Ownership/Lease N/A 

Business 
Plan/Officer 
Comments 

including details of 
support moving 

forward/next steps 
linked to growth 

and sustainability 

The need for support for people with cancer or a life limiting illness has never 
been greater. There are currently over 2 million people living with cancer in the 
UK, with recent statistics revealing that 350,000 people are diagnosed each 
year.  
 
Angor has strong governance and is fully aware of the legal, supervisory and 
moral responsibilities arising from trusteeship. Many of the Trustees are true 
community ambassadors and leaders who have fostered relationships across 
the private, public and third sector over several years.  
 
The self-employed role is fixed term but will allow them to shape their key 
services and become sustainable. They will naturally increase the number of paid 
staff over time as the enterprise becomes more established and develops. 
 
Key tasks delivered over the next 12 months will no doubt place Angor on a 
better footing namely: 

Tudalen 12



 
 

• Establishing positive relationships with local community groups, the 
local authority, health board, local stakeholders and corporate partners. 

• Attending community events to promote all aspects of the project. 
• Delivering a programme of community engagement to encourage 

greater community awareness of Angor. 
• Recruiting and retaining volunteers. 
• Identifying income generating avenues – sponsorship, commercial and 

corporate opportunities. 
 

Recommendation  Award - £18,470.35 
 

Subject to:   

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

Application Reference: TFF-22-01 
 

Project Title Save Tregib Sports Facilities 
Applicant Tregib Sports Facilities Ltd 

Ward LLANDEILO 
Key Account 
Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client they 
must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the following 
3 categories:  
 

• Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be sustainable 
and create employment  

• Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs  
• Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 

communities 
 

Project Description Tregib Sports Facilities is a community managed, not for profit organisation 
managing the sports facilities on the Tregib School site Llandeilo 
Carmarthenshire since 2016. These facilities include an Astro turf, three 
football pitches, two rugby pitches, a running track, sports hall, gymnasium and 
changing facilities. The company is managed with the 20 clubs and 
organisations engaging around 1,000 community volunteers and participants of 
all ages in a wide range of sport and other physical activities.  
 
Recent Pitch Assessments of the Astro turf surface state it is at end of life and 
needs replacing by Summer 2023, risking the Astro turf being lost to the 
community. The groups have developed a strategy to work together, with local 
businesses, sports associations, and Carmarthenshire Council to raise finances 
to replace the Astro surface with a new Hockey Turf Pitch, with a 15-year life 
span, suitable for Football, Rugby, and Hockey and to install new energy 
efficient LED floodlights. 
 
The Astro Turf creates much of the income for the facility which then subsidises 
the rest of the facilities. As a result, all the other groups/users have the benefit 
of sustainable prices and the use of the Sports Hall, Gym, Changing room 
facilities etc. Thus, their fundraising campaign is entitled ‘Save Tregib Sports 

Tudalen 13



 
 

facilities’ as without a functioning Astro pitch the community run sports complex 
is not sustainable. 
 
They will use this grant funding together with the other funds to replace the 
Astro surface, install new energy efficient LED floodlights and will also appoint 
a specialist Project Management consultant to oversee the project and all 
quotes have been obtained. 
 
Since they took over the management of the facilities in 2016, ensuring the 
facilities are affordable has been one of their main goals, they have not 
increased the prices since they have been running the facility, and after re-
opened after Covid, they used the Covid Support Funds given to initially open 
the sessions free of charge, and then reduced their prices by 50% over 6 
months and then by 25% to ensure all the users were able to come back and 
that finance was not a barrier to their sporting activities. 
 
Having a new Astro Turf will allow them to continue operating in this manner as 
approximately 50% of the income comes from the Astro Turf bookings. Having 
new LED floodlights will also help with economic stability as their energy 
demands will fall by at least 40%, an essential element, faced with increasing 
energy costs. 
 
Without refurbishment the surface will not be safe to use after summer 2023. It 
is currently used by up to 670 players per week, users are representatives of 
the local community in terms of age and gender. 
 
The clubs using the Astro offer exercise and social contact to players who risk 
exclusion and declining wellbeing, including recent refugees, individuals 
recovering from significant illness, anxiety, and depression, they are also 
supporting players to stay active in sport into their late 60’s. 
 
Half of clubs and groups have male and female participants who are regularly 
active. The Astroturf offers exercise and social connections to individuals who 
risk exclusion or declining wellbeing: 
 
There is an Astro Turf pitch at the local secondary school - Ysgol Bro Dinefwr 
but at present this facility is not available for community hire or use. It is also 
not a floodlit pitch which would limit its effectiveness. The nearest floodlit Astro 
Turf pitch is in Ammanford 8 miles away, if their users were to travel there 
would obviously be travel time and cost for all the participants. Also, there is a 
capacity issue as the Astro Turf in Ammanford is remarkably busy, with only a 
few slots available on a Monday and Friday evening. They are planning to 
undergo their own resurfacing exercise in October 2022, so the new surface is 
likely to attract more users who are local to them. 
 
However, in a survey conducted in December 2021, 8 of the groups using the 
Astro reported that their 631 members would not regularly travel to less local 
facilities if the Tregib Astro were no longer available. The increases in costs of 
petrol during and the cost-of-living crisis mean that both Llandeilo adult and 
child players are now less likely to travel to other more distant facilities. 
 
Without a safe and functioning Astro Turf pitch, the community run Tregib 
Sports Facilities is unsustainable. The Sports Hall, Gymnasium users, running 
track users and football and rugby pitch users may be unable to pursue their 
sporting activities. 
 
Eight of the groups using the Astro report they would not be able to organise 
activities for their existing 631 members using alternative facilities. 

Tudalen 14



 
 

 
The club would cease to exist, many age groups and players would stop 
participating’ - Llandeilo Junior Football - (170 members) 
 
It is highly likely that the club would not be able to continue in its current form’ - 
Teigrod Tywi Hockey (170 members) 
 
The remaining 4 groups say they would not be able to offer their activities 
throughout the year, as local grass pitches become unusable during winter 
months. 
 
The club would not be able to train during the winter months’ - Llandeilo AFC 25 
members 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education - 95 
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 10 
• Number of community groups/organisations assisted – 16 
• New enterprises created  
• Number of jobs created – 1 
• Increased turnover /profitability - £3k 
• Public and private leverage funding £298,785 

 
Total Project Cost 

 
Eligible Capital 

 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
Match funding 

£318,785.00 - Gross 
 

£318,785.00 
£266,500 – Astro Turf Refurbishment 
£38,300 – LED Floodlight Upgrade 
£13,985.00 – Project Management 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
 

£20,000.00 @ 6.27 % 
 
 

£298,785.00 
£200,000 – Welsh Government Community Facilities Programme- applied 

£25,000 – Williams Brown Hill Trust – applied 
£50,000 – Sport Wales Be Active Fund – applied 

£5,000 – Crowdfunding – secured 
£5,000 - Hockey Wales - applied 

 
Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

• Cllr. Edward Thomas 
• Mike O’Shea – Welsh Government 
• Carl Daniels – Senior Sports & Leisure Manager 
• Ian Jones – Head of Leisure 
• Hywel Thomas – Actif Communities Area Co-ordinator 

 
Evidence of Need / 

Community 
Engagement 

The Astroturf pitch is used by several clubs and groups as well as members of 
the community, a survey was conducted in December 2021 and the estimated 
weekly use during the winter period is about 670 participants. Approximately 82 
volunteers and coaches support these people. 
 

Tudalen 15



 
 

The clubs/organisations that extensively used the Astro Turf in 2021/22, which 
consultation has been undertaken and evidenced within application, included: 

• Llandeilo Junior FC 
• Ysgol Ffairfach 
• Ysgol Llandeilo CP 
• Llandeilo RFC Juniors 
• Llandeilo Town AFC 
• Tuesday Football Club 
• Clwb Rygbi y Tymbl 
• Caerbryn FC 
• Ysgol Bro Dinefwr 
• Teigrod Tywi Hockey 
• Saron Junior Football 
• Friday Football Club 
• Walking Rugby 
• South Wales Hockey 
• Urdd Tennis 
• Festival of Senses 5 a side Football Tournament 

 
They have also undertaken several surveys of views of users and the wider 
community, also Survey of Schools (undertaken by Actif Sports and Leisure 
January 2022 - 123 responses received): 
 
How important is access to a local Astro Turf facility to you? 

• Extremely: 28% 
• Very: 30% 
• Moderately: 39% 

 
What would it mean to you if the Astro Turf were not available for you to use? 

• A lot as it is an exceptionally reliable place and area to play and teach 
sports.  

• Being a very sporty person, I would think it would have an excessively 
substantial reduction in my sport participation level. 

• I would be sad because I like playing with my football team 
• I would be sad because I like to go to Tregib after school in school clubs 

 
They also undertook a survey of the groups that use the Astro in Dec/January 
2022 and have an online survey that they have promoted online and through 
their Facebook page  
 
The Crowdfunding campaign was started over the summer holiday and despite 
most of their users being on holiday, they have already raised over £5,300 
through 74 individual supporters even though the focus of their Crowdfunding is 
to take place during September. 
 
Comments received  

• Glad to support this project, to ensure this essential facility is sustained 
and developed to provide sporting and leisure facilities for our 
community. 

• Incredibly lucky to have this community resource and we want it to 
continue. 

• Good luck with your efforts, it will be of great benefit for the local 
community, in a superb setting, Dymuniadau Gorau. 

• A worthy cause, the community needs these facilities. 

Tudalen 16



 
 

• Both of my children use this facility, and it would be unfortunate for it to 
be lost due to a lack of funding, wishing you all the best with your 
appeal 

 
Contributing to key 

Strategies 
Councils Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 
Sport and physical activity have long been used as a tool to improve mental, 
physical, and social wellbeing. Tregib Sports Facilities and in particular the 
Astro turf fulfils that brief. A cross section of the population and community of 
the area, from ages 6-76, use it for a variety of sports from junior football, 
walking rugby, hockey and of course training for senior football and senior 
rugby. 
 
A healthy community is a happy community, and we believe that people 
participating in sports makes for a happier and cohesive community. Without 
the Astro which is used every night during the week and during the day at 
weekends, participants will lose the ability to play sports, to socialise, to 
undertake physical activity which will affect their wellbeing both physical and 
mental. 
 
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act A Prosperous Wales - The 
project exists to protect a community run facility that makes high quality 
sport activities available in the local communities. Without this facility players 
would either cease to exercise or would have to drive 14.8 miles to play at the 
closest regional facility. If 30% of the 670 participants did this, it could generate 
16.6 tonnes of CO2 emissions per year. 
 
● A Resilient Wales - Tregib Sports Facilities is managing its site to maximise 
rewilding and a healthy natural environment - It is working with Coed Tregib to 
link the Tregib sports fields to the community Woodland and supporting 
sympathetic tree planting that will create more natural habitats for wildlife 
on fringes of the Tregib playing fields. The project will also replace the existing 
metal halide flood lights with LED floodlights thus reducing the emissions 
created by our activities and reducing the running cost of the Astroturf usage. 
 
● A Healthier Wales - This project is concerned with ensuring that the weekly 
sporting activity of approximately 18,000 hours of health and social exercise 
enjoyed by the 670 Tregib Astroturf users can continue and develop. 
 
● A more Equal Wales - The clubs that use the Tregib Astro are inclusive and 
support diversity. They bring people from diverse backgrounds together on the 
sports field and support them to develop relationships that help people to gain 
opportunity and work together more effectively in our local communities. 
 
● A Wales of Cohesive Communities - Tregib Sports Facilities is a 
community run company, the directors and organising team are all members of 
their clubs. They are learning new skills as they run the company and conduct 
this fundraising project. 
 
● A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language - 50% of the 
members and players in the clubs are Welsh speakers 
 
The project fits within Carmarthenshire Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018 
- 2023 

• The project fits closely in with 6 of the 7 key themes of the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Wales Act 2015 

• The Project fits within Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 
years: 

Tudalen 17



 
 

• Project enables them to reduce their environmental impact through the 
installation of LED Floodlights and with the intention of finding a local 
second life use for the existing end of life Astroturf surface. 

• The project also supports Carmarthenshire’s ambition of making our 
County the most active and in the UK. 

 
Ownership/Lease Tregib Sports Facilities Ltd has been successfully managing the Sports Hall, 

Gym, Playing Fields, and Astro turf at Tregib since 2016. It is a valued 
community partner of Carmarthenshire County Council, and its lease 
agreement has been maintained without issue. The Council has agreed in 
principle a 25-year lease for the Astroturf and playing fields to enable their long-
term maintenance, renewal, and public availability to be assured. 
  

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments including 

details of support 
moving forward/next 

steps linked to 
growth and 

sustainability 

The organisation has worked extremely hard over the past few months and were 
successful with their expression of interest to the Welsh Government and invited 
to make a full application, which has now been submitted for approval. 
 
Tregib Sports Facilities Ltd, made up of its directors and volunteers, ensures 
that the facilities are safe and well maintained. These facilities are booked by 
local schools or volunteer run clubs and associations who ensure that sporting 
activities are organised for participant’s and coaches following the guidance 
from the relevant National governing bodies. 
 
However, there is also a community benefit from the project, Tregib Sports 
Facilities is a community run venture, which grew when the school closed out of 
the potential loss of much-loved community assets. 
 
The Directors of TSF Ltd are players, parents of players, and community 
leaders. The facilities have been successfully run and maintained by volunteers 
who are players themselves. At the point of transfer many of the facilities were 
coming to the end of their life, however they have been looked after and 
renewed. The Astroturf is the foundation of the facilities. Funding this 
replacement has created a terrific opportunity for learning and collaborative 
action. All the fundraisers, project organisers and bid writers are either players 
or their family are members. 
 
This project is enabling a range of community members to develop a range of 
skills including: 

• Collaborative organisation, business planning and governance 
• Fundraising at club and organisational levels 
• Bid writing 
• Marketing and using social media 

 
At the end of the project contributors will be invited to come together to record 
what they have learned, so that these skills and knowledge are available for 
future projects. 
 

 
Recommendation 

 
Award - £20,000.00 

 
Subject to:  

 

 

Tudalen 18



1 
 

 
Annex 2 

 
 Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism 

 
Mynydd y Betws Community Benefit Fund 

2022-2023 
Report Author: Caroline Owen 

CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

 
Budget Available - £103,363.14 

 
Full Report Value: £84,983.87 

 
 

1 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-01 
 

Project Title Floodlights 
Applicant Amman United RFC 

Ward GLANAMMAN 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Amman United is a well-established Community Rugby Club, 
unfortunately, they have been, without floodlights on the rugby field 
for the last 4 years, which were originally donated to the club from 
the opencast mine in Garnant, when they regenerated the area on 
completion of the extraction of coal. The lights have become 
unusable, due to age and a professional electrical company has 
confirmed replacement parts are no longer available, therefore, the 
floodlights are no longer fit for purpose. 
 
They have spent four winters without lights, both senior and junior 
teams, have been paying to travel and use other facilities, to train, 
and they are desperate to get the lights updated, so they can 
continue to use, the facilities, throughout the year.  
 
This project is to assist with new LED floodlights, to be erected on 
existing columns, no planning required, which they have secured 
funds of £26k. The new floodlights would enable them to build on 
current playing numbers, both at senior and Junior sections, also 
establishing a Youth side. 
 
Within the junior section there are teams at, under 9s, 10s, 13s, 
and 14s, which means they are missing a massive gap of age 
groups, at 7s, 8s, 11s, 12s, 15s and 16s, this is something that they 
must build on for the benefits of the Community and the Club. 
 
They are currently building a new committee, as over the past 12 
months, they have had many younger members join, who are 
working hard to change the way the Amman United Rugby Club, is 
perceived within the community. 
 

Tudalen 19

mailto:CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


2 
 

Through the COVID pandemic they opened the function room 
upstairs, on a Tuesday evening and delivered food, to the most 
vulnerable families within the community, also opened the facilities 
daily in the afternoons for packed lunches, with enormous success.  
 
They have opened the doors to the community, as a hub for people 
to drop off supplies and resources for a family whose house burnt 
down locally, along with Ukraine appeal, also they are continuing to 
run a drop off point for food parcels for a local food bank. 
 
During recent storms where most of the village were without 
electricity, they welcomed the community for hot drinks and 
provisions within the club, over the weekend period. 
 
The facility is open for the community to raise funds for McMillan, 
with regular coffee mornings and charity events.  
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
Eligible Revenue 

 
Ineligible Costs 

 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£33,700.00 – (Net) 
 

£33,700.00 
Match level LED Floodlights on existing columns 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
 

£13,700.00 @ 40.7% 
 
 

£20,000.00 
£20,000 – Secured Williams Brown Hill Trust 

 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

They have consulted with various groups within the community and 
externally, which has generated new younger committee members, 
over the past 12 months, who are working hard to change the way 
the Amman United Rugby Club, is perceived within the community, 
that they are in and represent.  
 
They are working closely, with the junior section members, who 
have already been working with Rob Venus on community projects 
and are excited and committed, to be looking at future projects and 
programmes that open the facilities, to the wider community.  
 
The rugby club facilities are situated in the centre of Golwg Yr 
Aman Park and feel that it is especially important to be part of the 
development of this beautiful area, new lights will do this and be 
used for years to come, and will be enjoyed by many generations of 
children, young people, and adults. 
 
The focus is on community involvement which will have a strong 
ethos of encouraging community participation and social inclusion, 
this will be achieved through a volunteer scheme whereby people 

Tudalen 20



3 
 

can improve opportunities to meet others whilst learning new skills 
and gaining a sense of ownership in one’s community. 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation 
Creating a recreation facility at the park, providing access, all year 
round, winter and summer, encouraging children, young people, 
and adults of all abilities, to exercise more in the outdoors. 
Programmes, activities delivered, would be a means to provide 
families opportunities to spend important quality time together to 
build strong family bonds. The vision, is to ensure that the 
community of Cwmamman, are proud, of the facilities on offer, that 
it becomes the heart of community connections, such as summer 
carnivals, fetes, school sports days and dedicated events. Well 
maintained, accessible recreation facilities, are key elements of a 
strong and safe family- friendly community, opportunities delivered, 
will hopefully, encourage community members to become more 
involved, reducing alienation, loneliness, and anti-social behaviour. 
 
Health 
Over the pandemic period there is evidence that shows an increase 
in children, young people, and adults, suffering with mental health 
and wellbeing issues. As a club they hope to see a decrease in 
Mental Health and wellbeing issues, due to having the lights 
upgraded and being able to offer Training, being creative with 
different fun activities, playing rugby with friends, all year round, will 
give everyone more of a sense of purpose and a place within the 
community they live.  
 
Education 
Through playing sport and the physical activities, which will be 
provided, aiming to develop children, young people and adults, 
skills knowledge, and networks, to succeed at home, in the 
community and in their careers. As a club they aim to provide 
opportunities for people of all ages involved, to build on their core 
skills, levels of confidence, self-esteem, self-worth, character and to 
gain a better understanding of positive relationships with their peers 
and families. 
 
Culture 
This project does address culture, as they are giving young & 
disadvantaged people an outlet and keeping them out of trouble or 
rehabilitating young people who have been in trouble. Thus, 
creating a community-based culture in the Cwmamman Area. 
Additionally, The Amman has been at the heart of what people 
associate with the Cwmamman Area and brings its own cultural 
values to the Amman Valley Area. 
 
Energy Efficiency /Sustainability. 
Having the lights upgraded with LED light bulbs use around 85% 
less electricity than the normal incandescent bulbs and 50% less 
than fluorescent tubes. The efficiency of a light bulb is typically 
measured in lumens per watt, LEDs are better at efficient lighting 
because they provide higher lumens per watt than other types. The 
main advantage of upgrading, especially now when electricity bills 

Tudalen 21



4 
 

have doubled, is the running costs will be significantly lower than 
traditional lighting, savings could be up to 90%. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Lease Agreement 
 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Welsh Language Policy 
• Equal Opportunities Policy 
• Health & Safety Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Procurement Policy 

 
They have an organisational procurement statement for purchasing 
goods, which promotes using local suppliers where possible.  
 
There is an environmental policy in place which is always adhered 
to. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

Chairman Darrel Campbell 
The Chairman is responsible for the ultimate achievement of the 
strategic ambitions of the club as well as the overall management of 
its operational activities.  
 
Secretary Paul Worsfold 
The Secretary will manage, processes and maintain a record of all 
incoming and outgoing correspondence and club documents for the 
development project. In addition, he will record the deliberations and 
decisions of the club committee for the project. He will be 
Responsible for the day-to-day business and administration of the 
development project. 
 
Club Treasurer Brian Davies 
Financial manager of the club – maintains the integrity and accurate 
recording of the club’s financial position. He will be: Responsible for 
the management of the club finances in accordance with the 
decisions of the committee for the development project.  
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

Amman United has a strong history, identity, over one hundred years 
within the rugby community, locally and nationally, which also 
highlights, promotes the beautiful community of Cwmamman, where 
they are from, and want to sustain this for the future.  
 

Future Sustainability Not having lights has had a significant impact on the rugby club, 
with players not training locally, not playing evening games, which 
results in them not using the club. 
 
They have missed, hosting major evening cup games, at all levels, 
quarter, semi, and finals, which all bring major, financial backing to 
the rugby club and community.  
 
Replacing the lights, will provide enhanced opportunities for 
community members or anyone else to use the facilities, increasing 
footfall, generating additional income for long term sustainability. 
 
 

Tudalen 22



5 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• New Volunteers – 12 
• New Services – 4 
• Physical Improvements – 1 
• Environmental Improvements – 1 
• New Community Assets - 1 

 
Data of revenue, income, takings, attendance will all be recorded and 
shared annually at our AGM. This will also see the re-introduction of 
information shared on various socials online.  
 
All proceeds raised will be poured back into further enhancing our 
facilities and creating more alternative options for the community to 
attend and participate. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

Amman United is a well-established Community Rugby Club, who 
are working hard to change how the Community has perceived 
them, changing their committee, with new younger members, by 
opening their doors and socially interacting, engaging with the 
community, welcoming feedback, adapting to change to become an 
established Community Hub, working in partnership with other local 
organisations to support the community. 
 
Through engaging and working with CCC Bureau Officer, have 
been successful in securing match funding for this project delivery, 
also developing an Action plan for future projects, to benefit the 
community and their long-term sustainability. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 12 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded  
• Public and private leverage funding - £26,000 

 
Recommendation Award - £13,700.00 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 23



6 
 

2 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-02 
 

Project Title Essential Equipment 
Applicant Black Mountain Centre 

Ward CWARTER BACH 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The Black Mountain Centre (BMC) is a multi-functional community 
facility based in the village of Brynaman. It was set up to provide a 
focal point and venue for the community. The primary beneficiaries 
of the services available at the Centre are residents of the Upper 
Amman Valley. The Centre has an open-door policy and encourages 
people of all ages and abilities, also attracts visitors/tourists and 
businesses. 
This project is a result of review and evaluation of existing services 
and during our most recent public meeting with members of the 
community and Cwarter Bach Community Council, members 
expressed concerns about the air flow in our community Cafe.  
 
The main budgetary impact of the pandemic has been a reduction in 
income, but this is also intertwined with significantly less internal 
capacity and resources: ‘The pandemic has been a disaster for the 
community centre, due to the loss of volunteers who assist with the 
day to day running of the organisation.  
 
Many of the members are elderly and are still worried about catching 
COVID. The Cafe is in the middle of the building therefore there is 
no ventilation.  
 
This project is to fund 2 air conditioning units which will create a safer 
environment for the community to enjoy all available facilities at the 
Centre, also to purchase a new commercial dishwasher, easing 
pressure on café volunteers. 
 
To minimise the long-term negative impact on the financial stability 
of the business they must make the centre a safer environment to 
encourage members and volunteers to return. 
 
As well as playing a key role in community life in Brynaman, The 
Black Mountain Centre offers a wealth of facilities for visitors and 
business customers throughout the year, from Tourist Information 
to home-cooked food, free Internet access, interesting Heritage 
displays, Gallery, and Conference rooms; the Centre has 
everything to offer you from the heart of Carmarthenshire. All these 
income generating facilities assist the Centre to achieve 
sustainability and any profit made is gift aided back into community 
activities. 
 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 

£7,833.80 – (Net) 
 

£7,833.80 
£4,964.80 – Air Conditioning Units 

£3,442.80 – Commercial Dishwasher 

Tudalen 24



7 
 

 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

 
Ineligible Costs 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 
 

£5,904.80 @ 75.4% 
 
 

£1,929.00 
Own funds secured 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

Meetings 
Word of mouth consultation  
Business planning 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

• Recreation 
• Education 
• Health 
• Environment 
• Culture 

 
The Centre is a hub for the local community providing a vast range 
of activities that fall into all the above themes.  
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Cross Cutting Themes 

Welsh Language 
ICT 

Equal Opportunities 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Welsh Language Policy 
• Digital Inclusion Policy 
• Equal Opportunities Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Health & Safety Policy 
• Lettings Policy 

 
The Centre consider environmental sustainability to be particularly 
important and work hard to conserve energy, resources and recycle 
fully, they have an environmental policy and have solar panels 
which sustain all their electrical needs. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The Management Board has a supervisory role. Two of the trustees 
have responsibility for the Café and kitchen areas, the treasurer and 
the finance officer will oversee all financial aspects and the Chairman 
and Centre Manager will ensure that the works and future 
maintenance will be of highest order.  
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The Centre is a hub for the local community providing essential 
services within the Ward. 

Future Sustainability The Black Mountain Centre employs a manager, responsible for the 
day to day running and for the short, medium, and long-term strategic 
planning for future development. The Centre is no longer just a 
village hall, it is a business and as such needs to employ experienced 
staff to ensure that the business is well-organised, and effective for 
the community it serves and for future sustainability. 

Tudalen 25



8 
 

 
Also, the centre has a robust management structure and 
governance arrangements supported by written articles of 
association and memorandum of association that make up the 
constitution of the organisation.  
 
The management team at the Centre will be responsible for the 
future maintenance and sustainability of the project. Through 
increased footfall and improved access, they expect the income 
generation arm to increase which in turn will allow them to improve 
on current services, introduce new facilities and continue to be a 
sustainable social enterprise.  
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• New volunteers - 5 
• Environmental Improvements – 3 
• Jobs safeguarded - 1 

 
 
This project will create a safer environment which will in turn increase 
footfall. The success of this project will be measured by monitoring 
how many visitors and volunteers they can attract.  
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

As well as playing a key role in community life in Brynaman the 
Black Mountain Centre offers a wealth of facilities for visitors and 
business customers throughout the year, from Tourist Information 
to dining, Crafts and Conference rooms, the Centre has everything 
to offer you from the heart of Carmarthenshire.  
 
All these income generating facilities will allow the Centre to retain 
long sustainability and any profit will be gift aided back into the 
community activities. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 5 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded - 1 
• Public and private leverage funding - £1,929.00 

 
Recommendation Award - £5,904.80 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 26



9 
 

3 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-04 
 

Project Title Brynamman Public Hall Stage Lighting System Upgrade 
 

Applicant Brynamman Public Hall & Institute 
Ward CWARTER BACH 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The wide use of the stage has been the core of Brynamman Public 
Hall since the 1920s and has provided the community with a central 
hub of recreational activity for 100 years. The trustees wish to keep 
the stage up to a fully usable standard for the considerable number 
of schools, community groups and clubs that benefit from the 
facility. To do this, an overhaul and upgrade to the stage lighting 
system needs to take place. 
 
Adaptations and upgrades need to be put in place to secure the 
usability and longevity of this vital facility in the future. The Trustees 
also recognise that putting on live performances at the Hall is not 
an easy task due to the outdated facilities. Only very few staff 
members are trained to manipulate and operate the current 
equipment, and often more modern equipment needs to be sourced 
from outside, such as paying to hire equipment for a particular 
performance from an equipment rental company. Keeping the 
venue in line with expected performance equipment specification 
will also make the Hall more attractive to outside touring 
companies. Shows that are brought from outside the community to 
the Hall offer a chance for the community of Brynamman and the 
surrounding villages to enjoy entertainment right on their doorstep 
at a fraction of the cost of travelling to a town or city and visiting a 
larger venue.  
 
The grant funding will be spent in three ways as part of this project: 

• The purchase of new stage lighting equipment to be 
installed within the Public Hall, including electrical cabling 
and accessories, internally wired bars for the safe rigging of 
lights, and a package of modern, energy efficient LED stage 
lighting fixtures. 

• The professional installation of the above equipment. 
Existing equipment and infrastructure will need to be 
removed and/or modified to accommodate the new 
equipment. Some minor structural work to the stage rigging 
area and a significant amount of electrical work will be 
undertaken as part of the project. 

• The provisioning and testing of the new installation and 
equipment by a professional theatrical equipment 
installation and testing company. 

 
The project will see the installation of industry standard equipment 
and systems, which will enhance the current usability of the stage, 
but also future proof the venue for many years to come. Creating a 
solid foundation for a range of stage lighting equipment and 
adaptation is at the forefront of the planning process. The project 
will create a far more sustainable approach to live events at the 

Tudalen 27



10 
 

hall, and the application has demonstrated great awareness of this 
by looking to source the installation of a system built entirely around 
the use of LED fixtures, disregarding the need of older and 
outdated technologies that are not as flexible or energy efficient. 
The project will also have a huge focus on recycling. Most materials 
removed will be recycled or reused.  
 
This project will ensure that opportunities for employment, training 
and community benefit will continue in this form at the venue. 
These opportunities will also expand after the project is complete. 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£35,000.00 (Net) 
 

£35,000.00 
Main lighting bars  

Side Boom and side lighting  
DMX System  

Main distribution board  
Package of LED lanterns  

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
£10,000.00 @ 28.6% 

 
 

£25,000.00 
Public Hall and Institute £5,000 - secured 
Targeted Finance Fund £20,000 - secured 

 
Evidence of Need / 

Community Engagement 
Brynamman Public Cinema is the only venue of its kind in the area. 
Venues that survived demolition slightly further afield such as 
Pontardawe Arts Centre and Ammanford Miners Theatre are both 
examples of venues that were closed for an exceptionally lengthy 
period, and reopened years later after full refurbishment.  
 
Brynamman never once closed, and still to this day is completely 
independent and run by the committee of trustees who are 
descendants of the many ex miners and people of the community 
that helped to run the hall for the last century. 
 
For the Public Hall to be able to offer the stage as a facility, 
upgrades to this system need to be put in place. This will ensure 
that the Hall remains an attractive venue for touring companies, but 
it also means that the local groups and community who benefit from 
the stage facilities will have access to modern equipment which will 
increase training opportunities and broaden the potential for 
performing arts at the venue. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation & Culture 
This project will further secure Brynamman Public Hall as a centre 
for recreation and culture, for which it was built by subscription from 
miner’s wages in an era when the area was industrial and there 

Tudalen 28



11 
 

was significant deprivation. There is still deprivation, but the Hall 
continues to serve the people of the valley and beyond, capturing 
the cultural essence of so many local people who worked in, for or 
around the pits in the valley and to enshrine them within a building 
that has been the focus of their entertainment, rest, and recreation 
for the last century.  
 
This project seeks to capture the effect the Institute had on people’s 
lives and be a cultural resource for future generations. The 
equipment installed as part of this project will significantly enhance 
and modernise a vital community facility, enabling the provision of 
performing arts and recreational performance activities to continue 
at the venue.  
 
The Hall provides a venue for live entertainment which cannot be 
accommodated on this scale anywhere, at a rate that can be 
afforded by everyone, or even donated free of charge. It has and 
will continue to have a fully functional, professional stage for live 
performance of all kinds that must be kept up to date and to fully 
usable standard. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Cross Cutting Themes 

Welsh Language 
ICT 

Equal Opportunities 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Equal Opportunities Policy 
• Welsh Language Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Safeguarding Policy 
• Digital Inclusion Policy 

 
This project will ensure the operation of stage facilities in an 
environmentally friendly way, by choosing to convert to an LED 
based system, as opposed to the more traditional theatrical 
incandescent fixtures, a significant amount of electricity is saved. 
Fewer fixtures are also needed to create a similar effect, as LED 
fixtures can contain hundreds of colours, versus traditional lanterns 
which tend to have one or very few colours. The total power draw 
saving of the lighting system on a typical live show will be up to 
75%.  
 
The project will also have a huge focus on recycling. Most materials 
removed will be recycled or reused. A lot of the cabling removed 
will be kept as stock to make trailing cable for other projects. The 
lanterns removed will also not be thrown away. There is a market 
for lots of the retro lighting fixtures that are currently installed, and 
whilst they are no longer suitable for mainstream use, there are 
retro themed clubs and venues or even antiques collectors who 
would be interested in obtaining the equipment to upcycle. It will not 
go to waste. 
 
The old lighting bars and steel rope, brackets and accessories will 
be given away locally. There will be next to zero waste from the old 
equipment being removed. 
 

Tudalen 29



12 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

All team members at the Public Hall are playing a key role in the 
project. When the project was first envisioned back in 2019, a 
meeting was held to discuss in depth the requirements for the new 
installation. One thing that shone out was the new system needs to 
be easier to use and maintain. The Public Hall sees a fast 
turnaround in volunteers through the volunteering program. With an 
‘all first-hand deck’ approach for everyone who joins, the systems in 
place need to be easy to manage, safe, and quick to learn. It is 
evident that when this project is a success, the simpler usability of 
the system alone will be of huge benefit to everyone involved.  
 
Tom Smith will be overseeing the project as project manager. With a 
background in technical theatre and 12 years at the Public Hall, who 
understands the complexities involved with a project of this scale for 
live performance. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

Brynamman Public Cinema is the only venue of its kind in the area. 
 
The Hall has strong relationships with numerous members of the 
community who rely on the facilities available at the venue. 
Examples of current groups are Cylch Meithrin, Brynamman 
Primary School, Ammanford Community Theatre, Amman Valley 
School of Dance, and the halls Volunteering Programme.  
 

Future Sustainability This project will create a far more sustainable approach to live events 
at the hall. With the current outdated facilities, it has already been 
proving difficult for several years to successfully operate and use the 
existing equipment. There is no option to further carry the use of this 
equipment into the future. By installing a new system, with specific 
focus on future proofing electrical and physical infrastructure, the 
stage will be equipped to serve the needs of crew and performers for 
years to come. The evolution in theatre technology was rapid during 
the 20th century, and it continued to rapidly evolve well into the 
2000s with the improving energy efficient LED technology. This 
project will see the installation of a system built entirely around the 
use of LED fixtures, disregarding the need of older and outdated 
technologies that are not as flexible or energy efficient. Full LED 
installations are at the forefront, and by installing a system of this 
type, there is a guarantee that the infrastructure and equipment will 
remain relevant and practical throughout its usable lifespan. It will be 
the backbone of the live performance facilities at the Public Hall for 
years to come. 
 
The equipment and infrastructure that is being installed will require 
general maintenance on a regular basis going forward. Most of this 
maintenance can be done by in house team members who are 
technically trained. This will include standard practices such as visual 
inspections and PAT testing, but also regular cleaning and 
maintenance of the lighting instruments. The motors and winches for 
lowering and raising the on-stage lighting bars will be inspected 
annually by a qualified company. 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

• Individuals into training -14 
• Individuals into volunteering -16 

Tudalen 30



13 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• Jobs safeguarded – 8 
• Social enterprises supported - 1 

 
The project will be an enormous success for all involved in live stage 
show activities at the hall. This will be monitored continuously 
through active use of the stage and facilities, training, and 
performances. With the huge upgrade planned, completion of the 
project will feel revolutionary for those who are accustomed to the 
older equipment. There will be far more time to focus on what matters 
when a lot of the challenging work and worry is taken out of planning 
a show. We believe this will become clear as soon as the facilities 
begin seeing use. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

Upon completion of the project, the Public Hall will be fully equipped 
with an up to date, industry standard, energy efficient stage lighting 
system. The group have addressed how the equipment and 
infrastructure that is being installed will require general maintenance 
on a regular basis going forward.  
 
In terms of potential growth, renewing the staging area will allow the 
hall to explore more live programming opportunities with the aim of 
increasing the number of live performances. Also, with the potential 
of more shows, this could be of financial benefit to the Hall for 
increasing the opportunity for charitable and donated stage use. The 
outcomes of the project will engage with a mixture of employees, 
trustees, and volunteers. The volunteering programme is incredibly 
successful at the hall, and this will only enhance the opportunities 
they can provide. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education - 14 
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 16 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported - 1 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded - 8 
• Public and private leverage funding - £25,000 

 
 

Recommendation Award - £10,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 31



14 
 

4 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-05 
 

Project Title Redevelopment of Play Area/Decking 
Applicant Caerbryn Welfare Association 

Ward PENYGROES 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Caerbryn Welfare Association was formed over 75 years ago holding 
their first meeting in a red shed, shed goch colliery building, but with 
grant monies received 20 years ago, topping £130,000 the 
surrounding land and red shed site has evolved to become a 
recreation park with a modern welfare hall, used daily and 
professionally managed and run for over 20 years, self-sustaining, 
requiring extremely limited grant funds. 
 
Regular groups facilitate the hall, such as WI sewing group on 
Wednesdays, Kick boxing on Thursdays, Llandybie Choir on 
Wednesdays, Yoga on Mondays, and Spiritualist group on 
Thursdays, also spectators watching regular football matches from 
the rear of the hall. There are also birthday parties at weekends and 
recently there was an extraordinarily successful Jubilee party. 
 
The play equipment and the decking has come to the end of its life 
and is unsafe, this project is to re-develop the play area and upgrade 
the current unsafe wooden decking area, with replacement 
composite decking.  
 
The decking is around 50ft x 15ft, an extensive additional space for 
the hall activities, due to being a vast outdoor recreational space, 
which until recently, due to not being fit for purpose, was a well-used 
part of the facility, especially during summer months and when 
COVID restrictions were lifted, and in the interests of health and 
safety, urgently needs to be replaced. 
 

• The grant will allow the new decking project and the 
redevelopment of the play area to proceed 

• The quality of activities at Neuadd Caerbryn will be 
improved because people will be able to use the outdoor 
area 

• The proposed project is fully sustainable in the short and 
long term. 

• The proposed project will increase participation. 
• The proposed project will increase activities increased 

events can take place with a safe outdoor decking area. 
The Hall is an essential part of the community, it is a valued, well-
loved community asset 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 

£78,000.00 – (Gross) 
 

£78,000.00 
£24,000 – Bison joists, wall & composite decking 

£54,000 – Groundwork, play equipment, grass mat surfacing & 
Installation 

 

Tudalen 32



15 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

 
£15,000.00 @ 19.2% 

 
 

£63,000.00 
£20,000 – Llandybie Community Council – confirmed 

£25,000 – Welsh Government CFP – applied 
£15,000 – Garfield Weston Foundation – applied 

£5,000 – Williams Brown Hill Trust – applied 
£15,000 – Bernard Sunley Foundation – applied 

(Funds have been over applied as reduced awards may be 
granted, to ensure full project costs are received, all decisions 

to be received by September 2022) 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

Significant community consultation has been undertaken including 
returned completed Questionnaires, and Letters of Support have 
been received.  
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

 

Recreation/Education/Health/Culture – Creating a comfortable 
and modern serviceable environment for the recreational use of 
members and the community users. 
  
The objects of the Institute are to promote the education, culture, 
health, and wellbeing for the residents and surrounding district, 
regardless of age, ethnic origin, ability, and gender, religious or 
other belief or political affiliation. 
 
The development of the play area will significantly improve 
recreational facilities for local children and thus will contribute to 
their health and wellbeing. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Cross Cutting Themes 

Welsh Language 
ICT 

Equal Opportunities 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Welsh Language Policy 
• Equal Opportunities Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Health & Safety Policy 
• Lettings Policy 

 
The material used for the decking, will be obtained from 
environmentally friendly sources, as will the play equipment. 
 
The hall adheres to a robust Environmental Policy and has notices 
for all users to follow. 
 
The material used for the decking will be obtained from 
environmentally friendly sources as will the play equipment 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

Committee members will manage the delivery of the project, who are 
experienced and dedicated, as shown in the professional 
management of the hall for over 20 years. 

Tudalen 33



16 
 

 
Mapping of service/ 

facility within the area 
 

There is no other community facility in the area, no duplication of 
services. 

Future Sustainability Neuadd Caerbryn has a well-run management team who will be 
responsible for the maintenance of the decking. Llandybie 
Community Council have confirmed they will take over the 
management of the play area, providing it is brought up to standard, 
which will include the ongoing maintenance and annual safety 
checks 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• New volunteers  
• Physical Improvements 
• Environmental Improvements schemes 
• New community assets 

 
 
The increased usage of Neuadd Caerbryn will be evidenced through 
the regular updates of functions held in the hall and there will be 
regular committee meetings to which all residents are invited, to 
provide feedback, which is evaluated by the committee for ongoing 
improvements if necessary. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The hall has been used over many years for the Mynydd y Betws 
annual panel meeting, due to the internal facilities, easily 
accessible and ample parking. 
 
No funding has been requested previously from the Mynydd y 
Betws fund, this is a well-deserved project for the residents of 
Blaenau and Caerbryn and a much-needed park re-development 
for the local children. 
 
Prior to COVID, meetings had taken place for funding opportunities 
to deliver this project, unfortunately, funding had to be put on hold 
due to the lack of capital funds. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 2 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded  
• Public and private leverage funding - £63,000 

 
Recommendation Award - £15,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 34



17 
 

5 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-06 
 

Project Title Regeneration of Bunkhouse Facilities 
Applicant Cwmamman Town Council 

Ward Glanamman 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

This application seeks to secure funding for the modernisation and 
renovation of the resource centre located in Glanaman to offer a 
modern and fully equipped resource centre and 28-bed bunkhouse 
for use by the local community and those visiting the area.  
 
The modernisation and an improvement in the safety and 
accessibility of the centre will allow new community groups to use 
the facility, increase the number of bookings and in turn provide new 
and additional opportunities to the local community. 
 
They hope to be able to improve and modernise the interior by 

• purchasing modern furniture 
• modernising and improving the disabled toilet/disabled-

friendly lavatory facilities 
• modernising and refurbishing the toilet facilities 
• installing new flooring to the kitchen, main foyer, both the 

male and female toilets, three shower areas and a corridor 
leading to the bunkrooms. 

• Create a functional and modern outside space by 
collaborating with community groups such as a gardening 
club and brownies to create planting schemes. 

The availability of a fully equipped and modern bunkhouse facility will 
be of significant benefit to the residents of the local community by 
providing them with a high-quality modern and accessible space for 
local community groups. It will also attract tourists and groups to take 
advantage of the attractions and opportunities and enhance 
spending in the area which will contribute to the economic growth 
plans. 
 
In partnership with Tourism Wales, Brecon Beacons tourism and 
Discover Carmarthenshire and by utilising booking websites such as 
booking.com and pitch up group accommodation, they hope that the 
renovation of these facilities will maximise the use of the bunkhouse 
space and enhance the quality of services available to the local 
community. 
 
The benefits for the wider community are significant. Residents will 
have opportunity to engage in cultural and artistic events and use 
the space to develop new and existing groups and activities. This 
will provide a catalyst for the development of the local creative, 
educational, environmental, cultural and arts economies.  
 
Other benefits to the community include: ·  

Tudalen 35



18 
 

• Participants will have the ability to improve their education 
and access volunteering opportunities which will in turn lead 
to better employment opportunities. 

• People suffering from mental health issues will be 
encouraged to access stress relieving courses, groups, and 
activities. 

• Collaborating closely with the community to ensure that the 
resource centre develops courses/activities to suit the wider 
community which will increase participation. 

• The groups currently using the facility will be able to expand 
their activities in a modern and accessible a location. 

• Activity providers and group facilitators both within and 
outside the community will be able to bring a wider range of 
activities to the community. 

• The availability of the bunkhouse facility will bring tourism 
and therefore an increase in the economic growth of the 
area benefiting both the local business and the community. 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£24,820.00 (Net) 
 

£24,820.00 
£8,645.00 – Modern furniture 

£5,520.00 – Toilet facilities refurbishment 
£9,275.00 – New flooring 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
 

£15,000.00 @ 60% 
 

£9,820.00 
Own funds secured 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

A community consultation indicated that the people of Cwmaman 
would welcome the refurbishment Resource Centre for community 
benefit. 
 
Opportunities 

• Link in with youth clubs and schools 
• Links with organisations and groups offering cultural and 

environmental opportunities. 
• Attract tourism into the area to develop innovative projects. 

 
Weaknesses 

• Not highly visible to people driving through Cwmaman, 
would need to be promoted. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation 
This project will provide a modern and accessible location to local 
community groups to use to provide residents with a range of 

Tudalen 36



19 
 

activities to support both their mental health and physical wellbeing. 
The children and parents of the community and the disabled 
community will be able to use a safe and accessible facility on their 
doorstep. With the growing level of poverty many families are unable 
to travel further afield. The bunkhouse facility will allow groups from 
other areas to use the local facilities and bring tourism and much 
needed economic growth to the area. 
 
Education 
The bunkhouse facility will allow community groups to visit the area 
to experience educational opportunities. The groups that currently 
use the centre such as rainbows, brownies, a youth club, and a 
gardening club will be able to continue to provide educational 
activities to their members. There is a scope to be able to provide 
educational themed weekends and continue to host the Celtic 
Bonsai convention who hope to use the centre annually. 
The area of ‘Staycation’ holidays is also a possibility, allowing 
families from urban environments to experience and educate 
themselves in a greener open space. 
 
Energy Efficiency/Sustainability 
The Council will seek wherever possible to use environmentally 
sustainable materials. The proposed renovation will lead to a 
reduction in energy costs and enhance user experience. 
Furthermore, the Council aim to hire the space at low cost to 
community groups but a higher cost to organisations wishing to use 
is as a conference/training facility. This will help financially sustain 
the future of the centre and allow the Council to continue making 
any necessary adaptations and ongoing repairs. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Cwmaman Town Council are freeholders of the resource 
centre/bunkhouse. 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Equal Opportunity Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Welsh Language Policy 
• Digital Inclusion Policy 

 
 
They will comply with all the environmental legislation in the project 
delivery and have a comprehensive Environmental and Biodiversity 
Policy in place. 
 
Maximise energy efficiency e.g., through use the of low-energy light 
bulbs and insulation of pipes where applicable, source materials and 
services locally where possible and consider the durability and end-
of-life disposal implications of products before purchasing. 
 
Community groups and bunk house guests will be encouraged to 
reduce water consumption and use local recycling initiatives 
whenever possible. 
 
They will ensure that any machinery, electrical appliances, and lights 
are turned off when not in use. 

Tudalen 37



20 
 

 
When conducting the renovation and modernisation will ensure that 
suppliers and contractors are aware of their environmental policy by 
providing them with a copy when they are asked for evidence of their 
public liability insurance. 
 
Will promote the message of sustainable living and environmental 
promotion to all user groups.  
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

Cwmaman Town Council will implement and oversee the 
development of the resource centre/bunkhouse and will be 
responsible for the day-to-day management of the facility, including 
taking bookings, collecting the hire charges, and arranging and 
paying for routine maintenance. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

Strengths  
· No other facility of this kind in the surrounding area 
· Opportunities to attract local groups 
· Opportunities to attract groups from outside areas 
· Tranquil atmosphere which boasts excellent countryside 

views to aid well-being. 
· Local businesses are easily accessible. 

 
Future Sustainability Cwmaman Town Council will be responsible for future maintenance 

and liability of the project. They feel that they can charge the local 
groups/individuals a more favourable rate to encourage its usage. 
However, they aim to charge a higher rate to commercial 
organisations  
 

· Hire charges at a preferential rate for local users from 
Cwmaman.  

· Hire charges will cover the cost of maintenance, electricity, 
heating, and lighting.  

· Creating a marketing plan to raise the profile and promote the 
facilities at the resource centre/bunkhouse to both the local 
community and groups outside our area. 

 
Outputs to be achieved 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• Jobs safeguarded – 2 
• Physical Improvements - 2 

 
 
An evaluation plan will be created using data collected relating to 
the number of bunkhouse and community group bookings taken, 
this baseline and evidence-based evaluation of the success of the 
project will be used to track, increase in bookings for 
accommodation and an increase in the number of community 
groups using the centre.  
 
A clear increase in the awareness of the facility will also be 
evaluated to ensure that an increase in local engagement and 
community benefit is achieved.  
 

Tudalen 38



21 
 

The project will be closely monitored, and regular reports submitted 
to Cwmaman Town Council to evaluate the project, adjusting where 
necessary. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The visitor economy is an underdeveloped market in the Amman 
Valley. 
 
Cwmaman wish to make more of its natural environment, walks, 
trails, and activities, proximity to the Brecon Beacons National Park 
and being part of the Amman Valley. 
 
The growth of supporting facilities and accommodation would be of 
benefit and should be supported, demand has grown since COVID, 
and the bunkhouse would be great facilities for the location. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering  
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted -1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded - 2 
• Public and private leverage funding - £9,820.00 

 
Recommendation Award - £15,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 39



22 
 

6 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-07 
 

Project Title Ground Improvements 
Applicant Cwmamman United AFC 

Ward GLANAMMAN 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Cwmamman United now play in the Ardal Southwest of the FAW 
pyramid system and are a category 2 club and must achieve certain 
criteria.  
 
One of those criteria is the ground facilities and playing surface. All 
the teams of 85 senior and 122 junior players use the main and mini 
pitches for training and playing, they are currently looking to form a 
youth and a girls’ team. This has been made possible by conducting 
vital drainage works on all the pitches allowing maximum use 
particularly in the winter when up to 70% of games and training were 
called off due to a waterlogged pitch.  
 
They were fortunate to have succeeded in being awarded a 
substantial grant from the FAW for the project of £65,000 with the 
club securing funding for the remaining £7,000. This investment of 
£72,000 now needs to be kept up to a high standard and requires 
some additional accessories for the ground improvement machinery.  
 
They want to build their grassroots club to function as a wellness 
space for the community and to drive the club forward through 
health, culture, language, sustainability, equality, diversity and 
particularly inclusion. 
 
With 122 junior and mini registered players and growing each year 
the facility is there for the benefit of all and will allow players of all 
abilities to benefit from the enhanced surroundings. The 
participation levels alone will bring many health benefits to local 
children in recreation and sport and would be available for all 
organisations to use. It also gives the lucky children who do have 
the ability the opportunity to develop on good facilities, locally. 
 
With over 200 registered players ranging from 6 to senior level the 
facility will match the ambition to provide all participants with the 
same opportunities regardless of ability, race, or gender. 
The benefit to the community is to maintain a first-class facility for in 
the village which is envied by many clubs from much bigger towns 
around South Wales. Sustaining the quality of the investment already 
made will help to achieve greater participation for junior and senior 
players.  
 
The fields can now cater for community events like the carnival, 
hospital fete, school events etc. The club is keen that the community 
uses all the facilities as much as possible. 
 
It is a once in a generation chance to improve and sustain the 
facilities to improve the health and wellbeing of the community both 

Tudalen 40



23 
 

on and off the pitch by partnering with our members and 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£8,222.40 (Gross) 
 

£8,222.40 
£1,080.00 – Fertiliser spreader 

£720.00 – 3 Point harrow 
£480.00 – Grass mulcher 

£5,942.40 – Under sling cutting deck 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

£5,922.40 @ 72% 
 
 

£2,300.00 
£800.00 – Own funds secured 

£1,500.00 – Cwmamman Town Council secured 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

As a club they have consulted with both physical and mental health 
organisations on what their needs are and how they can 
accommodate them.  
 
All improvements made have taken this into consideration and with 
the COVID pandemic it has been difficult to consult outside the 
football bubble. 
 
The project has the support of local people regularly participating in 
physical activity enhancing their health and wellbeing.  
  

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation/Health/Environment 
 
The project contributes to the fund themes in many ways, such as 
recreation for adults and children, keeping fit and healthy, also 
mental wellbeing by being active. 
 
The club is now one of the highest divisions of Welsh football 
between Llanelli and Pontardawe and bringing recognition to the 
Amman Valley throughout South Wales.  
 
The facilities currently provided, are comfortable for parent’s 
supporters and visiting teams, regardless of the tier of football the 
club will always leave a legacy for future generations if the high 
standard of the playing service is sustained. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Lease agreement following CCC Asset transfer to Cwmamman 
Town Council. 
 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

• Equality Policy 
• Environmental Policy 

Tudalen 41



24 
 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Disability Policy 
• Safeguarding Children Policy 
• Welsh Language Policy 

 
The ground will be maintained by the club under a lease agreement, 
they have published an environmental and disability policy 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The current committee has a wealth of varied experience and the 
general ground improvements conducted over the last few years 
have been led by the President, a project and general manager in 
Industry with years of experience in large project management 
valued at over £1 million. 
 
Chairperson – retired HR director for a multinational IT company with 
responsibility for all the companies. 
 
Secretary - successful local business owner, held posts with West 
Wales Football Association, Welsh League Committee. 
 
Press Officer - experienced in parks maintenance and vital to 
ensuring the playing surface matches the other facilities. 
 
Committee of 12 volunteers, including safeguarding officer, qualified 
FAW coaches, Junior coaches DBS checked, qualified first aiders 
and a Community Liaison officer. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The playing fields are a public park with recreation facilities for 
children and a riverside walk that runs alongside the two fields. All 
the area within the lease is to be maintained and will enhance the 
landscape in the park. The riverside walk area is a tremendous 
facility used by many walkers. 
 

Future Sustainability Under the asset transfer policy implemented by the local authority 
the maintenance of the field will and has already been the 
responsibility of the club for some years.  
 
They currently have 12 good committee members and growing with 
a wide variety of transferable skills, well placed to run the club well 
and provide a legacy for the Amman Valley well into the future 
regardless of the level the club is playing at, a top-class facility 
available to all and managed by a good committee. 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
Monitoring and 

Evaluation of outputs 

• New Volunteers – 30 
• New Community assets – 4 

 
• Increase in community events 
• Increase in Charity fund raising with good dry conditions 
• Ability to increase number of Junior football festivals 
• Satisfaction of safety and social inclusion for children 

supported by parents and guardians 
• Substantially increase participation levels. 

 
Business Plan/Officer 

Comments  
The club has received substantial funds from CCC, FAW and 
external funders to upgrade facilities in line with FAW requirements. 

Tudalen 42



25 
 

 
They have previously been successful in securing funds from 
Mynydd y Betws, to purchase a tractor, enabling them to undertake 
essential maintenance of the grounds. 
 
The request for additional essential equipment is justified for the 
continued maintenance and upkeep of the facilities. 
 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 10 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded  
• Public and private leverage funding - £2,300 

 
Recommendation Award - £5,922.40 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 43



26 
 

7 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-08 
 

Project Title Main Pitch Floodlights 
Applicant Penybanc RFC 

Ward LLANDYBIE 
Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Over the last ten years the committee have worked hard and 
invested into the clubs’ facilities to create a safe and fun 
environment for all to enjoy. They have a senior team squad of 30 
players and a strong mini and junior section between u6s to u16s 
teams with over 200 children playing at the club.  
 
This project is to fund the installation of new LED floodlights to 
replace the old existing lights that have been in place since 1980, 
which they are experiencing issues with electrical faults and power 
supply tripping, on a few occasions when they have had mini and 
junior teams on the field during training sessions.  
 
They have been advised by the WRU that the new lights will initially 
be for training and will then be upgraded to match lights for the 
seniors, and junior section, being able to play mid-week matches.  
 
They are looking to widen the use of our club to have the local 
schools and district teams have use of their on-field activities 
including holding neutral grounds matches and cup games, also 
having the opportunity to hold mid-week games and training 
sessions without the worry of the lights not working would improve 
the sustainability of the club moving forward. 
 
Other club projects that have been completed include new junior 
pitch, new overflow car park, club house refurbishment, new 
commercial kitchen, and they are currently in the process of 
installing solar panels on the club.  
 
All the above projects combine to produce a community hub for 
players and visitors to all use. The new LED floodlights will be 
connected to the solar PV panels which will have storage batteries 
on site to store the daily power then use the stored power in the 
nights with the lights in reducing our carbon footprint and being a 
sustainable club for the future. 
 
Through the support of Sport Wales grants they offer training to the 
volunteers, leading to a formal qualification, in addition to being 
DBS checked. This improving training and playing facility to the 
community, activities for the children and qualifications to the 
volunteers at the club. 
 
The project will benefit the club and community in many ways by: -  

• Providing safe training space to undertake sport sessions 
during the shorter nights. 

• Offer the opportunity for more children to participate in sport 
• With a better facility higher frequency use and session can 

be held on the pitch 

Tudalen 44



27 
 

• With more mini & junior teams comes the need for more 
qualified coaches and ref’s 

• Increased visitors to the club would mean improved club 
finances 

• The project will be sustained by the club, the groundsmen 
will be attending sports ground maintenance courses 
regarding any ongoing maintenance of the lights 

• The project will provide the club with the opportunity to hold 
and play mid-week games during the shorter nights. 
 

Without the new lights they would struggle to keep everyone happy 
at the club, with 30 senior players and 200 mini and junior players 
there is not enough space to have everyone train on the same 
nights. The new lights would have plenty of use being used from 
Tuesday to Friday for training sessions to ensure everyone has 
ample field time. 
 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£44,300.00 (Net) 
 

£44,300.00 
LED Floodlights & base 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
 

£15,000.00 @ 33.9% 
 

£29,300.00 
£2,300 – Own funds secured 

£10,000 – Sport Wales applied (decision July 22) 
£5,000 – Williams Brown Hill applied (decision July 22) 

£5,000 – Llandybie Community Council applied (decision Sept 22) 
£7,000 – Coalfields applied (decision Sept 22) 

  
Evidence of Need / 

Community Engagement 
They have been in liaison and discussed the project with the WRU 
regional and development team.  
 
Due to their own success, they had to develop the club to continue 
to accommodate the number of players and volunteers that they 
have and have provided evidence of ongoing community 
consultation to make these improvements. 
 
The guidance they received regarding the solar PV system and 
battery storage as well as LED floodlights were received from 
Renew Wales which they have provided feasibility documents 
regarding the running of the club and their carbon footprint.  
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation/ Health/Energy efficient/Sustainability 
 
The project helps them to continue to deliver fun training sessions 
to all age groups in a safe environment with qualified coaches, to 

Tudalen 45



28 
 

maximise everyone’s enjoyment they seek to provide the correct 
training equipment and offer the best pitch facilities that they can so 
that each player leaves the club having had a good fitness session, 
playing with friends, bonding with new teammates, enjoying sport, 
learning new skills. 
 
It is about building a community spirit around the club for sport, 
recreation, health, and social benefits which everyone can enjoy. 
 
The new LED floodlights will be connected to the solar PV panels 
which have storage batteries on site to store the daily power then 
use the stored power in the nights with the lights in reducing their 
carbon footprint and being a sustainable club for the future. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Lease Agreement 
Cross Cutting Themes 

Welsh Language 
ICT 

Equal Opportunities 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Welsh Language Policy 
• Equal Opportunities Policy 
• Safeguarding Children & Adults @ Risk Policy 
• Environmental Policy 

 
 
Combined with the new solar PV system with battery storage, new A 
rated kitchen appliances, club LED lights and new LED floodlights 
shows that Penybanc RFC are committed to its Environmental 
Sustainability of the club for the community 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The management of the pitch development is run through the Club 
committee who meet once a fortnight and discuss any updates on 
the development.  
 

• Hayden Morgan - Club Chairman  
• Marc Jones, Juniors Chairman  

 
Will oversee the grant application, tendering and on-site quality 
control and inspections with the sports ground contractors. They 
have been extraordinarily successful in developing and delivering 
various projects for the club. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The club have a strong link within Penybanc and due to all the 
successful recent developments, have become the hub of the 
community. 
 
Evidenced from WRU records they currently have over 200 children 
at the club and a strong senior squad. Penybanc RFC is the only 
current club in the Amman Valley to have a full complement of teams 
from u6s straight through to u16s. This success has only been 
achieved through the hard determination of the club to secure its 
sustainability in the community for years to come.  
 
They can also measure on their success at district level with the 
number of club players representing Mynydd Mawr with 9 of their 
16’s team being selected for the Scarlets summer camp this year. 
 

Tudalen 46



29 
 

Future Sustainability The future maintenance of the floodlights will be with the clubs’ 
grounds person as a first point of contact and then the club 
committee. It is intended to implement an annual maintenance check 
of the lights including periodic service inspections. The ongoing 
maintenance will cost less due to the change in bulbs from halogen 
to new energy efficient LED lights. The floodlights will be connected 
to the new solar panels with battery storage.  
 
As the clubs’ solar panels will generate energy through the day and 
store the energy on site in the batteries, this power can then be used 
to run the club energy needs and floodlights before taking power 
from the national grid.  
 
This will give the club significant energy savings financially, reducing 
on utility bills, generating funds to invest back into the facility to cover 
the maintenance costs and bulb replacements as and when they are 
due.  

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

• New volunteers – 2 
• Environmental improvements – 2 
• Physical improvements – 1 
• New community assets – 1 

 
They will monitor and record player and coach numbers each season 
through the WRU registration process and monitor coaches also 
through the DBS portal.  
 
With the new LED floodlights which will be connected to the solar 
panel system with battery storage, they will monitor the electricity 
usage which should show significant savings to the club moving 
forward. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

Having the new lights will be the last large project that they need to 
deliver and complete at the club to ensure they can provide a safe 
space for children to exercise and play, also being a community 
hub for all to use.  
 
By being able to hold training session without light failure or mid-
week matches would result in higher visitor numbers to the club 
which will improve sales and profit from the bar and ticket sales to 
cement the club’s sustainability for the future generations of the 
community for players and visitors to Penybanc RFC. 
 
Between the lights and solar panels, this will vastly reduce their 
overheads and running costs as they seek to continue to be 
innovative and sustainable as a club within the community. 
 
Three years ago, they completed the new junior training pitch with 
the help of funding from Mynydd y Betws. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 2 
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted -1 
• Number of social enterprises created 

Tudalen 47



30 
 

• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded  
• Public and private leverage funding - £29,300 

 
Recommendation Award - £15,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 48



31 
 

8 of 8 
 

Application reference:  MYB-22-09 
 

Project Title Continued Development of Traditional Crafts 
Applicant Cwmaman Community Centre Management Group 

 
Ward GLANAMMAN 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

This application seeks to secure funding for capital equipment to 
develop and encourage the participation in traditional crafts within 
the community by ‘embracing shortcuts’ using some equipment to 
enable participation, inclusivity, and social inclusion. and to promote 
mental health, wellbeing. The equipment will improve the safety and 
accessibility of the traditional crafts such as pottery, sewing and 
wood carving in the community and will allow will new community 
groups as well as existing groups to use the facility.  
 
They hope to improve on the existing facilities making some of the 
processes more accessible and inclusive, with a conscious need to 
make the craft processes safe, they wish to purchase the following 
capital equipment: 
 

• New pottery equipment. 
• New sewing equipment. 
• Equipment to support wood carving. 
• Purchase of portable extraction units to create a safer 

environment. 

The new craft equipment will be of significant benefit to residents of 
the local community by providing them with the opportunity to 
engage in traditional crafts. It will also enable local community 
groups such as Shadows depression Group, inside out project, 
pottery classes, Mud club, Sewing and knitting Clubs.  
 
It will also attract tourists visiting the area to engage in activities and 
opportunities in crafts to enhance spending in the area which will 
contribute to the economic growth plans. 
 
In partnership with local third sector organisations such as 
challengers, Shadows Depression Group, and social prescriber’s 
they can develop awareness and promote to a wider audience. 
 
The benefits for the wider community are significant, residents will 
have opportunity to engage in cultural and artistic events and use 
the space to develop new and existing groups and activities. This 
will provide a catalyst for the development of the local creative, 
educational, environmental, cultural and arts economies.  
 
Other benefits to the community include: ·  

• Participants will have the ability to improve their education, 
skills within the crafts. 

Tudalen 49



32 
 

• People suffering from mental health issues will be 
encouraged to access stress relieving craft courses, groups, 
and activities. 

• Collaborating closely with the community groups to ensure 
that the Traditional Craft movement at the centre develops 
and that there are courses/activities available to suit the wider 
community which will increase participation. 

• Activity providers and group facilitators both within and 
outside the community will be able to bring a wider range of 
activities to the community. 

• Collaboration with other assets and local tourist businesses 
to develop the awareness of traditional crafts and therefore 
increase the economic growth of the area benefiting both the 
local business and the community. 

A meeting point for people of the locality in a tranquil environment, 
will attract those previously disengaged with current provision due 
to the accessibility of traditional crafts, developing innovative 
groups providing educational and social activities centred around 
Traditional crafts. 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£5,570.84 (Net) 
 

£5,570.84 
£263.16 – H&S Equipment for ceramics 

£2,505.00 – 3 Pottery wheels 
£422.00 – Clay extruder 

£628.95 – Clay slab roller 
£523.12 – Raku equipment 
£98.99 – Mini disc machine 

£666.65 – Professional scroll saw 
£147.97 – Dust extraction unit & hose 

£315.00 – Sewing equipment 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

 
£4,456.67 @ 80% 

 
 

£1,114.17 
Cwmamman Town Council secured 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

Letters from community members and Shadows Depression in 
support of developing the Traditional Crafts within the community. 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation 
This project will provide an opportunity to make traditional crafts 
more accessible to local community groups to use and to provide 

Tudalen 50



33 
 

residents both locally and regionally with a range of activities to 
support both their mental health and physical wellbeing.  
 
The traditional crafts facility will allow groups from other areas to use 
the local facilities and bring tourism and much needed economic 
growth to the area. 
 
Education 
The traditional crafts will allow community groups to visit the area to 
experience educational opportunities. The groups that currently use 
the centre such as Pottery class, Mud club. wood carving, sewing 
club and The Inside Out project will be able to continue to provide 
Craft and Social activities to their members. Having equipment that 
create ‘short cuts’ in some of the processes enables more 
individuals to access the crafts as the new equipment will make it 
more accessible. 
There is a scope to be able to provide individual Craft themed 
weekends as a future development. 
 
Energy Efficiency/Sustainability 
Some of the materials and the processes particularly clay and 
sewing can be recycled to create other objects. The Council aim to 
hire the space at low cost to community groups and offer the use of 
hiring part of the equipment as part of the rent of the space. This 
will help financially sustain the future of the centre and allow the 
community groups to develop and sustain at the centre 
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership – Cwmamman Town Council 
Cross Cutting Themes 

Welsh Language 
ICT 

Equal Opportunities 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

• Equal Opportunity Policy 
• Environmental Policy 
• Welsh Language Policy 
• Digital Inclusion Policy 

 
 
Some of the materials and the processes particularly clay and 
sewing can be recycled to create other objects The Council aim to 
hire the space at low cost to community groups and offer the use of 
hiring part of the equipment as part of the rent of the space. This will 
help financially sustain the future of the centre and allow the 
community groups to develop and sustain at the centre 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The asset manager will be responsible to monitor and take booking 
for the room hires.  
The community groups facilitators will monitor the use of the 
equipment and the number of individuals groups/activities and 
workshops. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The Centre management committee have delegated authority for the 
day to day running of the community centre in line with the policies 
of Cwmamman Town Council.  
 
They are a group that are made up of town council representatives 
and community members, supporting the centre in volunteering at 
events and raising funds wherever possible. 

Tudalen 51



34 
 

Future Sustainability Cwmamman Town Council will be responsible for future 
maintenance and liability of the project.  
 
Improvements to the local area by collaborating closely with 
community groups and organisations. Significant reduction on the 
carbon footprint of local people currently travelling outside of the 
village in cars to venues offering Craft provision. 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
Monitoring and 

Evaluation of outputs 

New services – 3 
New community assets - 3 
 
The project will be monitored by the additional use of the new 
equipment to enable more people to join in the activities/ across the 
traditional crafts. 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The request for traditional crafts, will build on what the community 
centre already has to offer and will bring together all ages to 
participate. 
 
The Centre is a vital part of the community giving the people of 
Cwmamman, an inclusive and welcoming environment to meet, 
socialise and continue learning. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education  
• Number of individuals into volunteering  
• Number of individuals into employment  
• No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 
• Number of social enterprises created 
• Number of social enterprises supported 
• Number of full-time jobs created  
• Number of jobs safeguarded  
• Public and private leverage funding - £1,114.17 

 
Recommendation Award - £4,456.67 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 52



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 53

Eitem Rhif  5
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(au) 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 57

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(au) 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 21AIN GORFFENNAF 2022.
	3 CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL:GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR AR CRONFA BUDD CYMUNEDOL MYNYDD Y BETWS
	Annex 1 -TFF
	Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism
	2022-2023
	Report Author: Jayne Pritchard
	JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
	Tel: 01269 590216
	Budget Available - £126,566.33

	Ychwanegiad 2
	Annex 2
	Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism

	Mynydd y Betws Community Benefit Fund
	2022-2023
	Report Author: Caroline Owen
	CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
	Tel: 01269 590216
	Budget Available - £103,363.14


	5 BENTHYCIAD CANOL TREF
	Adroddiad


